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       1                        P R O C E E D I N G S

       2                 (Transcript continues in sequence from Volume

       3       2.)

       4                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  We will reconvene.  Let the

       5       record show that it's 1:50.  We left the question in the

       6       hands of our staff attorney.  And, I guess, put us in

       7       the correct posture, or where do we go from here, or

       8       what have you decided?

       9                 MR. YOUNG:  Mr. Chairman, it's my

      10       understanding that Mr. Whitlock is going to withdraw his

      11       previous questions of previous documents and move

      12       forward with his cross-examination.

      13                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.

      14                 MR. WHITLOCK:  May I proceed, Mr. Chairman?

      15                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Sure.

      16                 MR. WHITLOCK:  Thank you.

      17                          STEVEN D. SCROGGS

      18       continues his testimony under oath from Volume 2:

      19                     CONTINUED CROSS EXAMINATION

      20       BY MR. WHITLOCK:

      21            Q.   Mr. Scroggs, I believe I asked you before

      22       lunch, and I just want to touch base back on this, your

      23       May 2nd testimony of this year, Page 4, Line 11.

      24            A.   I'm there.

      25            Q.   Okay.  You state that in doing so, which is
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       1       obtaining the licenses, FPL is creating a valuable

       2       option that can be exercised at the most opportune time

       3       for the benefit of FPL customers, correct?

       4            A.   That's correct.

       5            Q.   Okay.  And I think we established before, that

       6       does not say it will be exercised, correct?

       7            A.   That's correct.

       8            Q.   Okay.  Mr. Scroggs, as we sit here today, FPL

       9       has not made a decision to construct Turkey Point 6 and

      10       7, the final decision, has it?

      11            A.   That is correct, FPL has not made a final

      12       decision.

      13            Q.   Of whether to construct, correct?

      14            A.   I'm not sure of your meaning.  We clearly

      15       intend to construct.

      16            Q.   Okay.

      17            A.   We are going through all the necessary

      18       preliminary approvals and licenses to do so.

      19            Q.   But as we sit here today, FPL has not made a

      20       decision whether or not to actually construct Turkey

      21       Point 6 and 7, has it?

      22            A.   No.  That decision is going to be based on the

      23       economics and the events as they unfold over the next

      24       several years.

      25            Q.   Thank you.
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       1                 Earlier, upon questioning by Ms. Kaufman, you

       2       testified about the schedule revision, the modified

       3       approach that FPL was taking to the project, I think

       4       beginning in early 2010, correct?

       5            A.   We had talked about the schedule revision,

       6       correct.

       7            Q.   Okay.  And, of course, the revision of that

       8       schedule led to FPL taking certain steps, would that be

       9       accurate to say?

      10            A.   That's correct.

      11            Q.   Okay.  And one of those steps was deferring a

      12       decision on entering into an EP or an EPC contract?

      13            A.   That's correct, we did not.

      14            Q.   Okay.  And as we sit here today, has FPL

      15       entered into an EP or an EPC contract?

      16            A.   No, it has not.

      17            Q.   Okay.  And certainly it would be accurate to

      18       say that FPL will have to enter into one of these

      19       contracts, whichever form it takes, before you can

      20       actually construct Turkey Point 6 and 7, correct?

      21            A.   That's correct, at the appropriate time.

      22            Q.   Okay.  FPL also in early 2010 negotiated the

      23       deferral of long-lead material procurement, is that

      24       correct?

      25            A.   That's correct.
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       1            Q.   Okay.  If you would, just explain to the

       2       Commission and to me in some more detail exactly what

       3       types of long-lead materials are these?

       4            A.   The long-lead materials are basically heavy

       5       forgings and heavy component parts that make up the key

       6       components for the nuclear project.  They take

       7       significant time to put them through the foundry, finish

       8       them to their finished stage, so there's a long lead

       9       time for them to be manufactured.  And a few of them

      10       have specific manufacturing requirements that only a few

      11       places in the world can construct.

      12            Q.   And so you said these are key components to

      13       construction?

      14            A.   That's correct.

      15            Q.   And as we sit here today, has FPL initiated

      16       procurement of these items?

      17            A.   Well, under a reservation agreement we

      18       reserved manufacturing space for those components, and

      19       we have kept that agreement alive as we have moved

      20       forward with different milestones.  It was initially

      21       envisioned that that agreement would be rolled into an

      22       EP or EPC contract at the end of 2009.  Since we chose

      23       not to do that, we've negotiated extensions that change

      24       no material aspects of the agreement up to recently.

      25            Q.   And that didn't entirely answer my question,
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       1       but if you want to talk about the extensions of the

       2       forging reservation agreement, we can go there.  In your

       3       supplemental testimony to your May 2nd testimony, that

       4       forging reservation agreement has now been extended

       5       again until September 16th of this year, is that

       6       correct?

       7            A.   If you're speaking of the errata to the May

       8       2nd testimony where we identified that it has been

       9       extended to September 15th, that's correct.

      10            Q.   I apologize.  I thought that might have been

      11       supplemental.  Thank you for the correction.

      12                 Now, how many extensions of the forging

      13       reservation agreement have there been to date?

      14            A.   I believe this would be the fourth.

      15            Q.   The fourth.  And what has been the cost of

      16       negotiating those extensions, if any?

      17            A.   There has been no cost for extending that

      18       agreement, and no changes to the conditions of it.

      19            Q.   Is that an agreement with Westinghouse?

      20            A.   Yes, it is.

      21            Q.   And if ultimately if that agreement was

      22       canceled, there would be a cancellation or cancellation

      23       of reservation fees, correct?

      24            A.   That's to be negotiated.  If you go with the

      25       explicit reading of the current agreement, there is a

                          FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                       298

       1       cancellation cost.

       2            Q.   And what is that cost?

       3            A.   Different agreements are under different

       4       situations.  If Westinghouse is able to remarket or

       5       reuse the slots, we would get an 85 percent refund.

       6            Q.   So there has been four extensions negotiated,

       7       and certainly at some point before construction can

       8       commence, you're going to have to enter into a finalized

       9       forging reservation agreement, correct?

      10            A.   That may or may not take the same form.  The

      11       final EPC or EP agreement might encompass the contents

      12       of the current reservation agreement.

      13            Q.   Now, going back to my original question.  FPL

      14       is going to have to initiate procurement of the

      15       long-lead materials significantly in advance of

      16       construction, correct?

      17            A.   That is correct.

      18            Q.   And that has not been done to date, correct?

      19            A.   That's correct.

      20            Q.   Okay.

      21            A.   At this time it looks like we wouldn't need to

      22       initiate that until 2015 in order to maintain our

      23       current project schedule.

      24            Q.   To maintain the 2022/2023 projected in-service

      25       date?
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       1            A.   Correct.

       2            Q.   Okay.  Now, in 2010 FPL also withdrew its

       3       limited work authorization request with the NRC, is that

       4       right?

       5            A.   That's correct.

       6            Q.   And that limited work authorization or LWA, as

       7       I will refer to it, that would allow for the initiation

       8       of certain construction activities prereceipt of your

       9       combined operating license, correct?

      10            A.   That's the function of the limited work

      11       authorization, to identify specific portions of the work

      12       that can be initiated before the combined operating

      13       license.  But the reality of the situation, in our view,

      14       was that in discussing what the reality of the schedule

      15       may be is the introduction of a limited work

      16       authorization may have actually added time to the

      17       overall license review process.  So the value that it

      18       might have offered to start earlier could have been

      19       taken away by an extension of the overall review time.

      20            Q.   So any early construction activities are no

      21       longer a possibility, correct, in regards to Turkey

      22       Point 6 and 7 under the limited work authorization?

      23            A.   Under limited work authorization, which is a

      24       significantly confined portion of the work related to

      25       the NRC's purview.  There's a significant amount of work
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       1       related to site preparation, roads, and other

       2       construction that isn't safety related that can be

       3       undertaken without an LWA.

       4            Q.   Okay.  So as we sit here today, FPL has no

       5       engineering procurement or construction contract,

       6       correct?

       7            A.   That's correct.

       8            Q.   FPL has not initiated procurement of long-lead

       9       materials for construction, key components as you called

      10       them, correct?

      11            A.   That's correct.

      12            Q.   And FPL has just recently negotiated the

      13       fourth extension of this forging reservation agreement

      14       with Westinghouse, correct?

      15            A.   Correct.

      16            Q.   Okay.  If you would, if I could ask you to

      17       look over at the bottom of Page 4 of your May 2nd

      18       testimony, please, sir?

      19            A.   I'm there.

      20            Q.   Okay.  And you state there at Line 23, the

      21       projected in-service dates of 2022 and 2023 are based on

      22       the premise that predictability will be developed to

      23       begin preparation phase activities in late 2012 and

      24       early 2013; is that accurate?

      25            A.   That is our schedule.  That's correct.
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       1            Q.   Okay.  Now, it says based on a premise.  So is

       2       it your testimony that the current, the current

       3       projected in-service dates are based on a premise?

       4            A.   Correct.  As was the original project plan, we

       5       assumed that certain levels of predictability and

       6       stability would be achieved by 2010 in order to make

       7       2018 and 2022 --

       8            Q.   And that didn't happen, correct?

       9            A.   That didn't happen.  So in a similar way --

      10            Q.   Again, this premise might not happen either,

      11       Correct?

      12            A.   That's correct.

      13            Q.   And that would, again, result in pushing out

      14       the projected in-service dates.

      15            A.   It would result in pushing out the projected

      16       in-service dates.  And without money flowing to EPC

      17       contracts or other costly early expenditures, the

      18       customers would be protected by not having those

      19       expenditures charged.

      20            Q.   On page -- turning over to Page 6 of your

      21       testimony, on the majority of that page there you talk

      22       about the expected benefits, excuse me, of Turkey Point

      23       6 and 7, do you see that?

      24            A.   That's correct.

      25            Q.   Now, if Turkey Point 6 and 7 is never
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       1       constructed and brought on-line, these benefits would

       2       not be realized by FPL ratepayers, is that correct?

       3            A.   That's correct.  I mean, that's really the

       4       story here is it is a balance of pursuing significant

       5       benefits that are available to our customers uniquely

       6       offered by this type of technology, and doing the hard

       7       work early to create that opportunity.  And that's

       8       exactly what 6 and 7 is about.

       9            Q.   To create the option, correct?

      10            A.   I said create the opportunity; create the

      11       option is another way of saying it.

      12            Q.   Okay.  Over on -- if you could turn over to

      13       Page 15.  I think the page is captioned, "Issues

      14       Potentially Affecting Project"?

      15            A.   Yes, I'm there.

      16            Q.   Thank you.  Now, are these -- and I'm not

      17       sure -- are these kind of the qualitative issues in your

      18       feasibility analysis?

      19            A.   They certainly have a bearing on it.  I think

      20       I referred to this as indicators in the first question.

      21            Q.   Okay.

      22                 (Cell phone ringing.)

      23                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Really?  Really.  Where's

      24       your right hand?

      25                 Thank you.  I'm sorry.
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       1                 MR. WHITLOCK:  No.  Thank you, Commissioner.

       2       It was some much-needed laughs in the middle of my

       3       boring cross-examination here.

       4       BY MR. WHITLOCK:

       5            Q.   One of the -- you talk about four areas of

       6       issues potentially affecting the Turkey Point project,

       7       correct, Mr. Scroggs?

       8            A.   That is correct.

       9            Q.   Okay.  And first you talk about the Fukushima

      10       disaster, correct?

      11            A.   Correct.

      12            Q.   Okay.  Are you familiar with the NRC task

      13       force report that has been issued?

      14            A.   Yes, sir.

      15            Q.   Arising out of that?

      16            A.   I have seen it.

      17                 MR. WHITLOCK:  Okay.  If I could, I'll mark

      18       this for purposes of identification -- or request that

      19       this be marked for purposes of identification as Exhibit

      20       Number 194.

      21                 MR. YOUNG:  195.

      22                 MR. WHITLOCK:  195.  Okay.

      23                 MR. YOUNG:  You withdrew 194.

      24                 MR. WHITLOCK:  Okay.  We withdrew 194?

      25                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  So the current 194 we had is
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       1       no longer there.  We pulled that off.  So this is now

       2       194?

       3                 MR. YOUNG:  No.  We keep -- the way the

       4       process works is we keep the number as -- we keep it as

       5       numbered.  And if the party wishes not to enter the

       6       exhibit as marked, we just continue sequentially with

       7       those numbers.

       8                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  So this would be

       9       marked as 195?

      10                 MR. YOUNG:  Yes.

      11                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Gotcha.

      12                 (Exhibit Number 195 marked for

      13       identification.)

      14                 MS. CANO:  Excuse me.  I would just note for

      15       the record that Nils Diaz is also a witness in this

      16       case, and he has provided testimony specifically on

      17       these topics.  So I'm not objecting at this point, but

      18       that may be a more appropriate witness to spend our time

      19       with on this report.

      20                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  It sounds like you're

      21       objecting, but go ahead.

      22       BY MR. WHITLOCK:

      23            Q.   Mr. Scroggs, I would represent to you this is

      24       just the executive summary of the NRC task force report

      25       entitled, "Recommendations For Enhancing Reactor Safety
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       1       in the 21st Century."  Would you agree with that?

       2            A.   I'll take your word for it.

       3            Q.   Thank you.  If I could, if you could turn over

       4       to page, I believe it's Roman numeral IX, where the

       5       recommendation starts.  It starts with Number 1 at the

       6       top of the page.

       7            A.   I'm there.

       8            Q.   Okay.  And the recommendation from the task

       9       force -- the first recommendation was the recommendation

      10       to clarify the regulatory framework, is that accurate?

      11            A.   That's a paraphrase, yes.

      12            Q.   Okay.  Do you agree with that recommendation,

      13       that that is a needed change that needs to be made in

      14       the wake of the Fukushima disaster?

      15            A.   You know, I'm not an expert in NRC regulatory

      16       policymaking.  I would prefer to defer that to Witness

      17       Diaz.

      18            Q.   You are certainly familiar -- in your

      19       capacity, you're certainly familiar with regulatory

      20       issues surrounding the AP1000 surrounding new nuclear

      21       generation, are you not?

      22            A.   I am.

      23            Q.   Okay.  The second recommendation ensuring

      24       protection.  Number 2 states the task force recommends

      25       the NRC require licensees to reevaluate and upgrade as
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       1       necessary the design-basis seismic and flooding

       2       protection of structure systems and components for each

       3       operating reactor, is that correct?

       4            A.   That's what it says, yes.

       5            Q.   Okay.  Now, in fact, there is already concerns

       6       with the AP1000 design as it relates to seismic impacts,

       7       are there not?

       8            A.   I think through the course of the NRC's really

       9       detailed review, there has certainly been questions.

      10       But with the issuance of the staff's final safety

      11       evaluation report last week, I think the staff feels

      12       that those questions have been answered.

      13            Q.   So it's your testimony today that the Revision

      14       19 that was submitted by Westinghouse in June, that all

      15       of those technical issues have now been resolved?

      16            A.   Again, I can't speak to the NRC's regulatory

      17       purview and their opinion, but what I can say is they

      18       have moved on.  They have issued the final safety and

      19       evaluation report that addresses those issues, so

      20       apparently the NRC is ready to move forward with the

      21       AP1000 design certification amendment process.

      22            Q.   And the rulemaking has commenced based on

      23       Revision 18, correct?

      24            A.   Again, I'm not an expert in that process.  I

      25       would defer that to --
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       1            Q.   So you are not up-to-date with the current

       2       design certification document for the AP1000, that's

       3       your testimony today?

       4            A.   That is not my testimony.  If you are asking

       5       me -- the rulemaking for Revision 19 has not begun.  It

       6       is in process.

       7            Q.   Okay.  Now, if you turn over to the last page

       8       of this executive summary, that top paragraph there --

       9       let's see, starting with the third line down with

      10       recognizing, it says recognizing that rulemaking is in

      11       subsequent implementation typically takes several years

      12       to accomplish, the task force recommends interim actions

      13       to enhance protection mitigation and preparedness while

      14       the rulemaking activities are conducted, correct?

      15            A.   That's what it says.

      16            Q.   Okay.  Now, have those interim actions, to

      17       your knowledge, been initiated?

      18            A.   Not to my knowledge.  What I understand is

      19       that the NRC Commission itself is deliberating on what

      20       is a task force recommendation, and that there is a

      21       fairly wide range of opinion amongst the Commissioners

      22       at the NRC as to what the right and appropriate

      23       follow-on action is.  So I think that that is still

      24       being deliberated.  And it is yet to be seen what final

      25       actions might be handled as orders from the Commission
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       1       or what final actions might be handled in rulemaking

       2       from the Commission.

       3            Q.   And that certainly creates more uncertainty,

       4       does it not, regulatory uncertainty?

       5            A.   Well, again, we are watching --

       6                 MS. CANO:  Excuse me.  At this time I am going

       7       to go ahead and object.  We have been going down this

       8       line for a few minutes now.  The NRC rulemaking process

       9       is not within the scope of Mr. Scroggs' testimony.  Mr.

      10       Diaz has addressed that, and he is available to answer

      11       questions on this topic.  Thank you.

      12                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Before I go to staff for

      13       some clarification, it appears that the questions that

      14       he is asking him, some of whom he can answer, some he

      15       cannot answer, and I think the witness has done a fair

      16       job of saying the things that he is not technically an

      17       expert to answer and the ones that he can answer.  In

      18       some they have asked specifically in his opinion.  Now,

      19       what is outside of his specific testimony, I will defer

      20       to staff on that one.

      21                 MR. YOUNG:  I think, Mr. Chairman, you hit it

      22       right on the head.  I think, based on his expertise,

      23       Mr. Whitlock has asked him based on his expertise as

      24       relates to him, his duties as the Senior Director of

      25       Power Development, and he specifically stated that his
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       1       assignment is the Turkey Point 6 and 7 projects.

       2                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  So I will not agree with the

       3       objection.  And, Mr. Whitlock, you can continue on.

       4       And, Witness, the questions you can answer you can

       5       answer.

       6                 THE WITNESS:  Yes, sir.

       7                 MR. WHITLOCK:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

       8       BY MR. WHITLOCK:

       9            Q.   Mr. Scroggs, I'm going to show you what I'm

      10       going to ask to be marked as Exhibit 196 for purposes of

      11       identification.  Mr. Scroggs, I would represent to you

      12       this is an article from the New York Times entitled,

      13       "Countdown to a Nuclear Renaissance."

      14                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Mr. Whitlock, just for a

      15       second.

      16                 MR. WHITLOCK:  I'm sorry.

      17                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I think there are some other

      18       FPL people who need some copies.

      19                 MR. YOUNG:  And, I'm sorry, Mr. Chairman.

      20       Also, if Mr. Whitlock can give the title.  I know he put

      21       it on the document, but for the record, if he could give

      22       the title.

      23                 MR. WHITLOCK:  Mr. Young, I don't have a copy

      24       of the cover page with me.  I apologize.  The

      25       description of Exhibit 196 is New York Times, "Countdown
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       1       to a Nuclear Renaissance."

       2                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  And since we are there, what

       3       is the description of 195?

       4                 MR. WHITLOCK:  196.

       5                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  No, what was the one before

       6       that?

       7                 MR. YOUNG:  Executive Summary, NRC Task Force

       8       Review of the Fukushima Disaster.

       9                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.

      10                 MR. WHITLOCK:  Thank you, Mr. Young.

      11                 (Exhibit Number 196 marked for

      12       identification.)

      13       BY MR. WHITLOCK:

      14            Q.   Mr. Scroggs, I would like to focus your

      15       attention on the second page of this article, a little

      16       bit more than halfway down the page.  Meanwhile, do you

      17       see that paragraph?

      18            A.   I do.

      19            Q.   And it says, "Meanwhile, Mr. Jaczko," and that

      20       would be the Chairman of the NRC, correct?

      21            A.   That's correct.

      22            Q.   "Testifying on Tuesday before the Senate

      23       Committee on Environment and Public Works about the

      24       schedule for new rules after the Fukushima accident on

      25       March 11th in Japan, gave another reason why Vogtle
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       1       might be delayed.  He wants the Commissioners to focus

       2       on deciding within 90 days whether to accept

       3       recommendations from a task force that studied the

       4       accident's implications for American reactors."  And

       5       that would be the recommendations, some of which we were

       6       just looking at, correct?

       7            A.   It's my understanding that that statement is

       8       wholely speaking about the task force recommendations.

       9       And as I mentioned in my previous response, this is a

      10       subject of debate amongst NRC Commissioners at this

      11       point in time.  Mr. Jaczko is the sole Commissioner that

      12       holds that opinion.

      13            Q.   Right.  And I think your opinion -- that you

      14       are going to be proven right by the next sentence, which

      15       says, "But a majority of the Commission's members say

      16       that some of the recommendations need a lot more study,"

      17       correct?

      18            A.   That's correct.

      19            Q.   However, after that, Chairman Jaczko states,

      20       "You delay and create uncertainty, and pretty soon

      21       people are afraid to invest without a prompt decision."

      22       Is that accurate?

      23            A.   That's what the article states.

      24            Q.   Okay.  And then he states in his opinion it

      25       could create delay, correct?
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       1            A.   That's correct.  And all of this is, you know,

       2       quite recognized by FPL from the very beginning.  And,

       3       in fact, is a driving focus for us to be first of the

       4       second wave so that we can learn from these projects as

       5       they go through these initial stages as uncertainties

       6       creep up, get them resolved, and make our decision at

       7       the right time.

       8            Q.   And you agreed with Ms. Kaufman earlier that

       9       certainly Fukushima and the task force report and the

      10       manner in which those recommendations are acted upon

      11       could potentially affect projected in-service dates of

      12       Turkey Point 6 and 7, correct?

      13            A.   That's correct.

      14            Q.   And could also affect the total project cost,

      15       correct?

      16            A.   That's a possibility.

      17            Q.   Okay.  Going back to your May testimony, I

      18       believe on Page 21.  Page 21, correct.

      19            A.   21?

      20            Q.   Yes.

      21            A.   I'm there.

      22            Q.   On Line 10 you are asked about the economic

      23       developments impacting the FPL system and project

      24       feasibility analysis?

      25            A.   That's correct.
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       1            Q.   And you note there that the economic slowdown

       2       has resulted in reduced demand for electricity on the

       3       FPL system, correct?

       4            A.   That's correct.

       5            Q.   As well as reduced consumption?

       6            A.   Correct.

       7            Q.   And going down to Line 16 you talk about the

       8       fact that the price of natural gas is low, correct?

       9            A.   Today, yes.

      10            Q.   Today, yes.  And is it also accurate there's

      11       no price of carbon, no greenhouse gas legislation

      12       enacted to date?

      13            A.   That's correct.

      14            Q.   Okay.  And would you agree that the price of

      15       natural gas and the cost of carbon are two of the major

      16       drivers of the feasibility of nuclear power?

      17            A.   I believe that they are influential drivers to

      18       the overall cost-effectiveness for the economic or

      19       quantitative feasibility of the project.  But the

      20       project, as we've stated many times, has qualitative

      21       benefits particularly called out in the need

      22       determination rule for fuel diversity, reliability, and

      23       stability of costs.

      24            Q.   And we have talked about the uncertainty

      25       surrounding some of those qualitative factors, haven't
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       1       we?

       2            A.   Correct.

       3            Q.   Okay.  And there's also a lot of uncertainty

       4       around the quantitative factors, isn't there?

       5            A.   Well, there's uncertainty.  But through the

       6       long-run feasibility analysis process that we have

       7       adopted at the direction of the Public Service

       8       Commission, we look at multiple scenarios, and we

       9       believe that we are able to bracket the reasonable range

      10       of outcomes.

      11            Q.   Is it your testimony that as we sit here today

      12       it would be cost-effective to build a new nuclear power

      13       plant?

      14            A.   That's what our feasibility analysis shows,

      15       yes.

      16            Q.   So that is your testimony?

      17            A.   Correct.

      18            Q.   And did you prepare that, or did you play a

      19       role in preparing that feasibility analysis?

      20            A.   My role in preparing the feasibility analysis

      21       is the capital cost estimate, and we provided that to

      22       Witness Sim and his group to do the full analysis.

      23            Q.   And I just want to make sure I'm clear, the

      24       results of that analysis -- or it is your testimony that

      25       that analysis shows that it would be cost-effective --
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       1       with no price of carbon and with natural gas at its

       2       current prices, it would be cost-effective to build a

       3       nuclear power plant today?

       4            A.   That's not the annual feasibility analysis,

       5       and that's not my testimony.

       6            Q.   Well, I just asked you that question, and I

       7       think you answered yes.  So let's make sure we are

       8       clear.

       9                 Would it be cost-effective today for FP&L to

      10       build Turkey Point 6 and 7?

      11            A.   A project is not built overnight and not built

      12       with variables frozen in an individual point in time.

      13       The Commission has over the years relied on a very

      14       vetted process to project out into the future what the

      15       most cost-effective generation technology will be to

      16       meet the company's needs.  Through that process, which

      17       is embodied in the feasibility analysis, we are

      18       demonstrating today that this project under this

      19       schedule with these assumptions is cost-effective in all

      20       scenarios cost competitive with natural gas in the

      21       lowest gas price, lowest emissions cost scenario, and

      22       adds the qualitative benefits that natural gas cannot.

      23            Q.   Thank you.  And just as we move ahead, I would

      24       ask if I ask you a question that you can answer yes or

      25       no, if you would answer it yes or not and then you are
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       1       welcome to explain as much you want to, okay?

       2            A.   Yes.

       3            Q.   But it would not be cost-effective today to

       4       build a new nuclear power plant, correct?

       5            A.   Yes, it would be if you apply the appropriate

       6       feasibility analysis, which is what my response is.

       7            Q.   Do you agree with me that the intent to create

       8       an option is much different than the intent to exercise

       9       that option, generally speaking?

      10            A.   No.

      11            Q.   You would not agree with that statement?

      12            A.   No.

      13            Q.   And could you explain your basis for

      14       disagreement?

      15            A.   They don't happen at the same time.  In order

      16       to exercise an option you have to create an option, so I

      17       don't see them as the same thing.

      18            Q.   Well, I asked you if they were different

      19       things.

      20            A.   Okay.  Sorry, I misheard you.

      21            Q.   Okay.  No problem.  So I will ask you again.

      22       The intent to create an option is much different than

      23       the intent to exercise that option, correct?

      24            A.   Correct.  Creating an option and exercising an

      25       option are two different things, but you cannot do one
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       1       without the other.

       2                 MR. WHITLOCK:  Thank you.  No more questions,

       3       Mr. Chairman.

       4                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Does that conclude all the

       5       questions of the intervenors?

       6                 Yes, ma'am.

       7                 MS. WHITE:  I have a couple.

       8                          CROSS EXAMINATION

       9       BY MS. WHITE:

      10            Q.   Good afternoon.

      11            A.   Good afternoon.

      12            Q.   I would like to talk briefly about the COLA,

      13       the cost of licensing application.  And I'm referring, I

      14       believe, to Exhibit SDS-12 and SDS-20.

      15            A.   Okay.

      16            Q.   Okay.  Can you tell me how much FPL has spent

      17       on securing the COLA to date?

      18            A.   I can give you a rough estimate on that, yes.

      19       Roughly about $70 million.

      20            Q.   Thank you.  And can you tell me how much FPL

      21       estimates to spend on securing the COLA, totally, from

      22       this point forward?

      23            A.   Probably around 140 million.

      24            Q.   So just so that I'm clear, the 140 is

      25       inclusive of the 70, is that correct?
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       1            A.   Correct.

       2                 MS. WHITE:  Okay.  Thank you.  Nothing else.

       3                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Does that conclude your

       4       questions.

       5                 MS. WHITE:  It does.  Thank you.

       6                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  And that concludes all the

       7       questions from the intervenors?  I'm coming to you,

       8       staff.  All right.  Let the record show that it is

       9       just -- Staff, questions?

      10                 MR. YOUNG:  No questions.

      11                 MR. WHITLOCK:  Mr. Chairman, could I ask that

      12       Exhibits 195 and 196 be entered into the record at this

      13       time?

      14                 MR. YOUNG:  I think, Mr. Chairman, if we could

      15       hold that off until after rebuttal, I mean, redirect,

      16       then we can pick up exhibits.

      17                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I was going to do that, but

      18       thank you.

      19                 Redirect.

      20                 MS. CANO:  No redirect.  Thank you.

      21                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Now, Mr. Whitlock, you want

      22       to enter --

      23                 MR. WHITLOCK:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  I

      24       would like to ask that Exhibits 195 and 196 be entered

      25       into the record.
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       1                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Let Exhibits 195 and 196 be

       2       entered into the record.

       3                 (Exhibits 195 and 196 admitted into evidence.)

       4                 MS. CANO:  Mr. Chairman, sorry.  I do not

       5       object to either of those exhibits, however, I would

       6       note that with respect to 195, pursuant to the Code of

       7       Evidence, parties are permitted to introduce other

       8       portions of a document when only a portion is being

       9       introduced.  And so with that in mind, FPL would move

      10       the entirety of the NRC task force review into the

      11       record as Exhibit 195, or in addition to Exhibit 195.

      12                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Staff?

      13                 MS. HELTON:  I agree with counsel for Florida

      14       Power and Light that they have that option to admit the

      15       entire exhibit.  My question is will you be providing a

      16       copy of the entire exhibit for everyone?

      17                 MS. CANO:  Sure will.

      18                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  And should we include that

      19       all as 195, or should we create another one as 197 to

      20       include it all?

      21                 MS. HELTON:  I don't know that I have a -- do

      22       you have a preference, Mr. Chairman?

      23                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  No, I do not.

      24                 MS. HELTON:  Then maybe for efficiency's sake,

      25       let's just say it's 195.  I'm not sure that that really
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       1       makes a difference for the record.

       2                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  And so just so I

       3       know, what is now the description of 195?

       4                 MS. HELTON:  Let me ask this question.  Is the

       5       entire document still an executive summary, or do we

       6       just strike that portion of the title?

       7                 MS. CANO:  I think we would just strike the

       8       executive summary portion of the title.

       9                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  So the title is NRC

      10       Task Force Review of the -- that word that is the

      11       disaster.  Okay.  That's the technical term.  All right.

      12       So we have entered 195 and 196 into the record.

      13                 Do you have something to add?

      14                 MS. CANO:  Yes.  FPL would move what has been

      15       premarked by staff as Exhibits 2 through 21, which are

      16       Mr. Scroggs' prefiled exhibits.

      17                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Mr. Scroggs' Prefiled

      18       Testimony 2 through 21 will be also moved into the

      19       record.

      20                 (Exhibit Numbers 2 through 21 admitted into

      21       the record.)

      22                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Is there anything else

      23       before we dismiss this witness?

      24                 MS. CANO:  I would just like to point out that

      25       Mr. Scroggs has no rebuttal testimony.  So when he is
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       1       dismissed, we ask that he be excused from the remainder

       2       of the hearing.

       3                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Staff?

       4                 MR. YOUNG:  Staff has no objections.

       5                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Intervenors?

       6                 MR. WHITLOCK:  No objection.

       7                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Consider the witness excused

       8       for the rest of the hearing.  Thank you, sir, for your

       9       time and your testimony.

      10                 THE WITNESS:  Thank you.

      11                 MR. ANDERSON:  FPL will call as its next

      12       witness Doctor Nils Diaz.  He will be presented by Mitch

      13       Ross of Florida Power and Light Company.

      14                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  And with each one of the

      15       witnesses that come up, if we can confirm that he has

      16       been sworn.

      17                 MR. ROSS:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.  Doctor Diaz was

      18       sworn this morning.

      19                              NILS DIAZ

      20       was called as a witness on behalf of Florida Power and

      21       Light Company, and having been duly sworn, testified as

      22       follows:

      23                          DIRECT EXAMINATION

      24       BY MR. ROSS:

      25            Q    Good afternoon.  Would you please state your
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       1       name and business address?

       2            A.   My name is Nils Diaz.  I am the Managing

       3       Director of The ND2 Group, LLC.

       4            Q.   And would you please state your business

       5       address?

       6            A.   My business address is 2508 Sunset Way,

       7       St. Pete Beach, Florida 33706.

       8            Q.   And were you previously sworn for your

       9       testimony here?

      10            A.   Yes, I was.

      11            Q.   Doctor Diaz, have you prepared and caused to

      12       be filed 32 pages of Prefiled Direct Testimony in this

      13       proceeding on March 1st, 2011?

      14            A.   Yes.  Yes, I did.

      15            Q.   Do you have any changes or revisions to your

      16       Prefiled Direct Testimony filed on March 1st?

      17            A.   Yes, I do.

      18            Q.   Would you please note those for the

      19       Commission.

      20            A.   Yes.  I would like to direct the Commission to

      21       Page 24 of my testimony.  On Line Number 4, the word

      22       that is written in the testimony is "conducted," it

      23       should be replaced by "completed."

      24            Q.   Thank you.  Doctor Diaz, have you prepared and

      25       caused to be filed 11 pages of Prefiled Direct Testimony
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       1       in this proceeding on May 2nd, 2011?

       2            A.   Yes, I did.

       3            Q.   Do you have any changes or revisions to your

       4       May 2nd prefiled testimony?

       5            A.   No, I don't.

       6            Q.   If I asked you the same questions contained in

       7       your two sets of prefiled direct testimony, as

       8       corrected, would your answers be the same?

       9            A.   Yes.

      10                 MR. ROSS:  Mr. Chairman, I ask that the

      11       Prefiled Direct Testimony of Doctor Diaz be inserted

      12       into the record as though read.

      13                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  We will insert the testimony

      14       of Doctor Diaz into the record as though read.

      15

      16

      17

      18

      19

      20

      21

      22

      23

      24

      25
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       1       BY MR. ROSS:

       2            Q.   Doctor Diaz, are you also sponsoring exhibits

       3       to your direct testimony?

       4            A.   Yes, I have.

       5            Q.   And do those exhibits consist of documents

       6       labeled NJD-1 through NJD-5?

       7            A.   Yes.

       8                 MR. ROSS:  And, Mr. Chairman, those exhibits

       9       have been marked as Exhibits 22 through 26 on staff's

      10       exhibit list.

      11       BY MR. ROSS:

      12            Q.   Doctor Diaz, have you prepared a summary of

      13       your testimony for the Commission?

      14            A.   Yes, I have.

      15            Q.   Would you please provide that summary now?

      16            A.   It's my pleasure.

      17                 Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman and

      18       Commissioners.  It is, again, my distinct pleasure to

      19       testify at the Florida PSC.  I have the privilege of

      20       visiting and working with your predecessors and with

      21       Commissioner Edgar before during my ten-year tenure at

      22       the NRC, and afterwards providing expert testimony to

      23       the Commission.

      24                 There is a strong nexus between safety,

      25       reliability, predictability, and economics, and I look
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       1       forward to our work here today.  I have reviewed FPL's

       2       approach to its Turkey Point Units 6 and 7 new nuclear

       3       project.  The step wise decision for the pursuit of

       4       Turkey Point Units 6 and 7 and the extension of the

       5       project target in-service dates are prudent and

       6       reasonable.

       7                 FPL is taking advantage of an NRC regulatory

       8       process that includes the stability and predictability

       9       of reactor licensing.  The FPL application references a

      10       nuclear power plant design that has been approved or

      11       certified by the NRC thereby generically resolving

      12       safety issues which are not subject to adjudication for

      13       conforming applications.  FPL's application also lags

      14       the lead applicant for a combined operating license for

      15       a Westinghouse design.  This strategy will enable FPL to

      16       incorporate lessons learned from their review of the

      17       Westinghouse design and should result in a combined

      18       construction and conditional authority to operate the

      19       plant issued prior to construction, reducing project and

      20       financial risk.

      21                 The NRC revised its waste confidence rule by

      22       extending the period of environmentally sound storage of

      23       the spent fuel to at least 60 years beyond the licensed

      24       life of each nuclear reactor.  The NRC confirmed its

      25       finding of reasonable assurance that sufficient disposal
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       1       capacity will be available for reactors when necessary.

       2       The NRC is conducting in-depth reviews to ensure that

       3       lessons learned from the Fukushima accident in Japan are

       4       addressed with U.S. nuclear plants.

       5                 Although current U.S. plants provide adequate

       6       protection to public health and safety, I expect that

       7       the NRC will mandate safety enhancements without

       8       radically changing US nuclear power regulation.  Reactor

       9       accidents can be effectively managed whenever adequate

      10       cooling and power is provided.  The Fukushima accident

      11       occurred because the plant operator failed to meet this

      12       basic requirement and a sustained loss of power or

      13       blackout resulted in core degradation and radiological

      14       releases.

      15                 In contrast, the U.S. nuclear regulatory

      16       scheme on operator capabilities specifically address the

      17       blackout scenario that occurred at Fukushima.  The

      18       continued implementation and enhancement of

      19       comprehensive safety measures are a priority for U.S.

      20       operators and are monitored by the NRC to ensure that

      21       plant safety is maintained on the most severe challenges

      22       supported by on-site and off-site resources with

      23       continuity of critical command and control and emergency

      24       response activity.

      25                 FPL plants have successfully endured severe
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       1       external events.  In 1992, Hurricane Andrew passed

       2       directly over FPL's Turkey Point Nuclear Plant.  There

       3       were no radiological impacts from this Category 5 storm,

       4       and both Turkey Point units were restarted without

       5       incident.

       6                 The new generation of reactors employ safety

       7       enhancements and address most of the issues posed by the

       8       Fukushima accident.  The Westinghouse reactor proposed

       9       for Turkey Point Units 6 and 7 has passive reactor

      10       cooling safety systems that do not require electrical

      11       power for operation.  It incorporates enhanced seismic

      12       protection and extended fuel pool cooling, and measures

      13       to address potential losses of large areas of the plant

      14       to external damage, otherwise known as D5D (phonetic)

      15       protections.

      16                 In summary, there will be regulatory and

      17       operator (inaudible) nuclear plant enhancements,

      18       specifically for station blackouts scenarios, seismic

      19       protection, and for strengthening D5D (phonetic)

      20       measures and emergency preparedness.  However, I do not

      21       expect there to be impediments to FPL receiving a

      22       combined license for the Turkey Point Units 6 and 7

      23       project or to obtaining NRC approval for the extended

      24       power uprate project arising out of the Fukushima safety

      25       review.
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       1                 That concludes my summary.

       2                 MR. ROSS:  Mr. Chairman, we tender Doctor Diaz

       3       for cross-examination.

       4                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Thank you.

       5                 Okay.  Who's first?

       6                 MS. CHRISTENSEN:  Office of Public Counsel.

       7       We have no questions.

       8                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.

       9                          CROSS EXAMINATION

      10       BY MS. KAUFMAN:

      11            Q.   Good afternoon, Doctor Diaz.

      12            A.   Good afternoon.

      13            Q.   It's a pleasure to meet you.

      14            A.   My pleasure.

      15            Q.   Were you in the room for the discussion that

      16       we had with Mr. Scroggs earlier?

      17            A.   Yes, I was.

      18            Q.   And you heard some discussion about some of

      19       the uncertainties that face new nuclear units coming

      20       on-line?

      21            A.   Yes, I did.

      22            Q.   And I think you even mentioned in your summary

      23       that you expect there might be the need for regulatory

      24       enhancements due to the Fukushima incident?

      25            A.   There will be.
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       1            Q.   And would you agree that depending upon the

       2       NRC's ultimate review of the task force recommendations

       3       and what ultimate action they take that that could

       4       result in a delay of the Turkey Point units coming

       5       on-line?

       6            A.   It could, but it should not.  If it please the

       7       Commission, I think really there is a paragraph that

       8       needs to be read from the task force conclusions.  It's

       9       just takes one minute, but I think it is very germane to

      10       the discussion.

      11                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Ms. Kaufman, does it answer

      12       your question?

      13                 MS. KAUFMAN:  I think that he answered my

      14       question.  I think that if counsel wants to do that on

      15       redirect, they can do it.

      16                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Sure.  Continue.

      17       BY MS. KAUFMAN:

      18            Q.   Doctor Diaz, would you agree with me that is

      19       certainly possible that there will be delays in the

      20       Turkey Point units due not only to the Fukushima

      21       incident, but other reviews that the NRC and other

      22       agencies may have to complete?

      23            A.   It is possible, but right now I believe we are

      24       on a very good solid ground to accommodate the schedule

      25       that the units at Turkey Point 6 and 7 are, and I do not
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       1       expect significant delays.  But, yes, they could be.

       2                 MS. KAUFMAN:  Thank you.  That's all I have.

       3                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  SACE.

       4                 MR. WHITLOCK:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  Just

       5       a couple of questions.

       6                          CROSS EXAMINATION

       7       BY MR. WHITLOCK:

       8            Q.   Good afternoon, Doctor Diaz.

       9            A.   Good afternoon.

      10            Q.   I just have a couple of questions for you.

      11            A.   Sure.

      12            Q.   I'm sure you are used to that, a lawyer's

      13       famous last words, right?

      14                 On Page 5 of your testimony, prefiled

      15       testimony dated May 2nd, 2011 --

      16            A.   Uh-huh.

      17            Q.   -- you were asked a question at Line 4, does

      18       the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory scheme address the scenario

      19       that occurred at the Fukushima Daiichi Nuclear Plants.

      20       Do you see that question?

      21            A.   Yes.

      22            Q.   And your response generally was yes, is that

      23       correct?

      24            A.   That's correct.

      25            Q.   Okay.  I don't know, do you have a copy of the
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       1       task force report there in front of you?

       2            A.   I actually do.

       3            Q.   And I just want to make sure I understand.  On

       4       the first page of the executive summary, below the three

       5       bullet points?

       6            A.   Uh-huh.

       7            Q.   There's a paragraph that starts with this

       8       regulatory approach?

       9            A.   Yes.

      10            Q.   It says, "This regulatory approach established

      11       and supplemented piece by piece over the decades has

      12       addressed many safety concerns and issues using the best

      13       information and techniques available at the time.  The

      14       result is a patchwork of regulatory requirements and

      15       other safety initiatives all important, but not all

      16       given equivalent consideration and treatment by

      17       licensees or during NRC technical review and

      18       inspection."  Is that correct?

      19            A.   That's what it says.

      20            Q.   Okay.  And then when you go over the very

      21       first recommendation that the task force made was that

      22       the task force recommends establishing a logical

      23       systematic and coherent regulatory framework for

      24       adequate protection that appropriately balances defense

      25       in-depth and risk considerations, correct?
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       1            A.   Correct.

       2            Q.   Okay.  So I guess I'm just trying to reconcile

       3       your statement that in your opinion the regulatory

       4       scheme already addressed a disaster like this, when it

       5       seems to me that the task force found something

       6       different.  Could you point out to me --

       7            A.   No, it did not find something different, no.

       8            Q.   Okay.

       9            A.   If I may explain, the language of the NRC,

      10       which is a different language than other languages --

      11       you don't have that problem, do you, the different

      12       languages?  (Laughter.)  But what it is saying is

      13       something extremely simple.  It is practically all

      14       regulatory commissions build on an original foundation

      15       and make changes and actually make corrections and make

      16       improvements and make things better.  And the NRC after

      17       TMI started with a complete new way of enhancing its

      18       regulations called probabilistic risk assessment, and

      19       what it does is it providers a tool that allows to make

      20       better decisions.

      21                 What the staff is saying, and by the way, you

      22       can read one of my speeches of 2002 on the proposal,

      23       that, yes, it is time that we eventually take portions

      24       of the regulations and bring them into a more coherent

      25       set of regulations.  That is a long process.  It will
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       1       take years to embody those regulations into a coherent

       2       patchwork, because every nuclear power plant in this

       3       country complies with reasonable assurance of adequate

       4       protection or they will not be -- they will not be

       5       operating.  Let repeat that.  They are in full

       6       compliance with reasonable assurance of adequate

       7       protection of public health and safety and of the

       8       environment or they will not be operating.  They do that

       9       every day, every minute, every year, time after time.

      10                 What the staff is saying is it is about time

      11       that we pause and bring this things that we did better

      12       and better and better into a more cohesive set, and that

      13       is one the discussions of the Commission.  The

      14       Commission is saying what is the time frame, how do we

      15       select.  I think we know pretty much that we are going

      16       to take all of these regulations that address serious

      17       accidents and have probabilistic risk assessment, and we

      18       probably will put them in a new body or a new part or a

      19       new appendix, and I think that will be good.  It will

      20       take a tremendous amount of time.

      21                 But what the task force clearly says is that

      22       new reactors already have practically all of these

      23       enhancements.  On Page 71 of the report it clearly

      24       states that the AP1000, if I may please the Commission,

      25       it actually says the task force knows that to the signed
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       1       certifications currently in the rulemaking process,

       2       i.e., the AP1000 and the SPWR passive safety systems, by

       3       the nature of their passive safety system and adhering

       4       72-hour coping capability for core containment and spent

       5       fuel pool cooling needs no operator action required.

       6       The SPR and AP1000 design have many of the design

       7       features and attributes necessary to address the task

       8       force recommendations.

       9                 What is missing is very simple.  Station

      10       blackout is going to be strengthened a little bit.

      11       Emergency preparedness will be strengthened.  Multi-unit

      12       issues is going to be strengthened.  But they already

      13       have the seismic all practically done.  They already

      14       have the cool pool capability with major accidents.  In

      15       other words, after 9/11 we, and especially myself,

      16       conducted a major federal effort to bring into place

      17       resources on-site and off-site to take care of a major

      18       external event.  And the external event was a big, big

      19       airplane.  Big, big, big airplane filled with a

      20       tremendous amount of fuel collapsing, you know, the

      21       structures in a nuclear power plant, and we have to

      22       recover it on time.  And that is in place.

      23                 But what the staff is saying is that every

      24       piece of this equipment doesn't meet every single

      25       nuclear quality qualifications, and they would like to
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       1       eventually bring them into an orderly process.  So

       2       really you have to speak, you know, NRCese to understand

       3       what they are meaning.  And, fortunately, I do.

       4            Q.   And unfortunately I don't.  So, thank you.

       5       It's my understanding, and I had asked Mr. Scroggs about

       6       this, and I believe he might have deferred to you that

       7       Revision 19 to the design certification document for the

       8       AP1000, the NRC had requested that in May of this year

       9       because of concerns, some of which related to seismic

      10       concerns, correct?

      11            A.   No, it was not only ready, there was a minor

      12       portion, but it really concerns two issues.  One, it was

      13       the capability of the entire building to sustain stress

      14       at different, you know, parts of the building.  And also

      15       it was an issue of the composition of the material, and

      16       they actually require a test that was done at Purdue

      17       University that was completed satisfactory.  They were

      18       also addressing a particular calculation that was done,

      19       and I am very proud of the NRC staff that they actually

      20       realized that the calculation was not fully explained

      21       and justified, and that just brings significant

      22       confidence in the way that the NRC actually does its

      23       business.

      24                 Regardless of how advanced something is, if

      25       there is an issue it will actually be reviewed, it will
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       1       be gone over.  If it takes more time, it will take time.

       2       So I think the process actually worked very well, and

       3       they eventually were satisfied that the AP1000 complied

       4       with all safety requirements, that's why they issued the

       5       final safety evaluation report.

       6            Q.   And does that final safety evaluation report

       7       incorporate Revision 19?

       8            A.   That's correct.

       9            Q.   Okay.  Are you familiar with -- and I imagine

      10       you probably worked with him, Doctor John Mott?

      11            A.   I did not work with Doctor John Mott, but I

      12       know who he is.

      13            Q.   Okay.  Are you familiar with his

      14       nonconcurrence?

      15            A.   I am familiar with his different professional

      16       opinion, correct.

      17            Q.   And do you agree with Doctor Mott's

      18       nonconcurrence?

      19            A.   No, I don't, but I'm not an expert on the

      20       issue.  But I have taken from people that are much

      21       better that I am that do not agree with him.

      22            Q.   Am I correct that Doctor Mott had concerns

      23       that NRC or Westinghouse had exploited a loophole in the

      24       definition of earthquakes and in their modeling had

      25       underestimated seismic impacts?
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       1            A.   I think that's a claim, but I am not so sure

       2       that many people agreed with it.  I think staff has

       3       undergone intensive review.  Chairman Jaczko himself got

       4       involved in the BPO.  He actually interviewed Doctor

       5       Mott.  There is always a panel that is put together.  I

       6       have participated in those panels before.  It is an

       7       exhaustive process.  And eventually, if there is an

       8       issue, it will be brought up.  I think the present

       9       ruling is that it has been done adequately enough to

      10       provide reasonable assurance of adequate protection that

      11       the suggestions of Doctor Mott will enhance what it is,

      12       but unnecessarily so.  In other words, it doesn't need

      13       to be more than what it is.  You can always make it

      14       stronger.  You can make it better.  You can make

      15       anything stronger or better, but it was not needed to

      16       provide the adequate design and protection of the public

      17       health and the environment.  That, I believe, was the

      18       decision.

      19            Q.   Even post-Fukushima you would agree with that?

      20            A.   Absolutely.

      21            Q.   You heard me talk with Mr. Scroggs briefly

      22       earlier about the conflicts between the NRC about

      23       implementing the near-term recommendations of the task

      24       force?

      25            A.   Yes, I have.
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       1            Q.   And does that give you pause for concern as it

       2       does the current chairman?

       3            A.   No, because I understand what the difference

       4       is.  There are requirements that will be issued that are

       5       what I will call short-term requirements, and this will

       6       be station blackout, emergency preparedness,

       7       multi-units, issues that might include flooding or

       8       seismic for the other units, not for the new reactors,

       9       because those already have them.  It will include a

      10       review of emergency planning and integration of the

      11       three things that we use in the power plants to deal

      12       with accidents, which is the emergency plan, severe

      13       accident management guidelines, and extensive, you know,

      14       accident management guidelines.  There are three sets of

      15       those.

      16                 What the staff is saying, those are very good,

      17       but let's integrate them and make sure we train on them,

      18       and they want to train at a higher level.  I think that

      19       is great.  I think it should be done, and I think it

      20       will be done.  But what Chairman Jaczko was saying, and

      21       especially in the article on the Wall Street Journal,

      22       and I watched the hearing --

      23            Q.   Good.  I was going to ask you about that, I'm

      24       glad you --

      25            A.   Every single minute of it.  Okay.  And the
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       1       issue, there is -- oh, I would call it a disagreement

       2       between the Commissioners among the time to implement.

       3       And, I'm sorry, I just have this bad habit of looking at

       4       who was talking to me, and I forget to look at the

       5       Commission.  Let me turn my back on you, and that will

       6       be better.  (Laughter.)  The reality is that the

       7       controversy is not on the majority of the actions that

       8       will improve the present established nuclear power

       9       plants.

      10                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Doctor Diaz, can I get you

      11       to pull that mike down and make sure you are clearly on

      12       the record.

      13                 THE WITNESS:  Yes, sir.

      14                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Just pull them down a little

      15       bit.

      16                 THE WITNESS:  Excuse me?

      17                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  No, if you can just pull the

      18       two mikes down a little bit, just to make sure that you

      19       are clearly on the record.

      20                 THE WITNESS:  I'm sorry.  Yes.  What I did was

      21       I turned my back on him, and that created a problem.

      22                 The controversy is a little bit of do we make

      23       a decision in 90 days about every single one of the

      24       recommendations of the task force, or do the Commission

      25       makes a decision on all of those things that the
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       1       Commission agrees should be done, and then in the ones

       2       that require additional input from the staff,

       3       additional, you know, analysis, do we, you know, put

       4       those into another time frame, say, add another three

       5       months to it or whatever it is.  I have no idea what

       6       they are saying.  And then actually bring experts to say

       7       this is the framework, this is the timing, this is the

       8       sequence.  That's where the issue is.

       9                 And what Chairman Jaczko was actually saying

      10       when he says this could provide uncertainty and delay,

      11       he was defending making all the decisions in 90 days.

      12       He's saying, you know, let's make -- let's decide what

      13       we are going to do, and what a few of the other

      14       Commissioners are saying is let's decide all we can as

      15       soon as we can, because we've got certainty in what that

      16       means, and let's go ahead and decide on the difficult

      17       long-term issues on a scale that allows to make better

      18       decisions.

      19                 And I believe that out of that there will be

      20       more certainty and more predictability.  After all this

      21       is what this industry has always wanted is more

      22       predictability.  And I believe the Commission is very

      23       aware of the predictability for this particularly.  And

      24       I think very good, you know, energy technology of this

      25       country, predictability is indispensable to be able to
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       1       make the right decisions in the regulatory arena and to

       2       provide, you know, a base for the industry to make

       3       appropriate decisions.

       4       BY MR. WHITLOCK:

       5            Q.   Mr. Diaz, I just have -- or, Doctor Diaz,

       6       excuse me.  I just have one more question.  You don't

       7       disagree with Mr. Scroggs' testimony that Fukushima,

       8       and, you know, the task force report and the

       9       implementation of the recommendations could potentially

      10       affect the schedule for Turkey Point 6 and 7, do you?

      11            A.   It could potentially, but, you know, I'm a

      12       little more of an optimist, and I don't have the

      13       restraints that Mr. Scroggs has in his view of the NRC.

      14       I actually believe that out of the Fukushima accident we

      15       are going to be gaining a nuclear power industry that

      16       has more confidence, that all of this severe accident

      17       issue will be taken care of and will provide a

      18       predictability and an economic platform that will allow

      19       the country to actually proceed into nuclear power.

      20                 If I may explain what I mean.  One of the key

      21       issues with the economics of nuclear power is its

      22       reliability and credibility.  When some of these

      23       Fukushima, especially the short-term fixes are made,

      24       nuclear power plants will increase the capability of

      25       staying on-line without being challenged by issues that

                          FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                       385

       1       could be challenging, you know, the repairability for,

       2       you know, external events, you know, major issues, and

       3       could come back to being on-line faster.

       4                 So, yes, it will cost money.  Yes, it will

       5       take time.  But it also will provide an additional level

       6       of assurance and predictability and repairability.

       7            Q.   I don't think most of the general public

       8       probably shares that opinion.

       9            A.   I am pretty sure that they don't.  I have been

      10       a few times on TV.  I think, and if I might say so, I

      11       believe that the NRC needs to actually come out of the

      12       task force and actually address the American public and

      13       explain what are -- what is the meaning of each one of

      14       these recommendations.  Where do they fit.  What are the

      15       results of it, because it is very important.

      16                 MR. WHITLOCK:  Thank you, Doctor Diaz.

      17                 No more questions, Mr. Chairman.

      18                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Mr. Whitlock, just to let

      19       you know, I will let witnesses editorialize as long as

      20       they want until you object.

      21                 Is that it for the intervenors?

      22                 Staff.

      23                 MR. YOUNG:  No questions.

      24                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Redirect.

      25                 MR. ROSS:  One question.
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       1                         REDIRECT EXAMINATION

       2       BY MR. ROSS:

       3            Q.   Doctor Diaz, when Ms. Kaufman was asking you

       4       questions, you wanted to refer to a paragraph in the

       5       executive summary of the task force report to explain

       6       your answer?

       7            A.   Yes, I did.  I think I already used the

       8       opportunity and read it.  It was the paragraph that is

       9       on Page 71, but the task force already -- the entire

      10       report is already on the record.  I would recommend

      11       reading the applicability and implementation strategy

      12       for new reactors on Page 71, and that essentially tells

      13       what the differences are from existing reactors and new

      14       reactors, and it specifically addresses the AP1000.

      15                 MR. ROSS:  That's all.  Thank you.

      16                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  We need to enter some

      17       things into the record.

      18                 MR. ROSS:  Right.  Mr. Chairman, we move

      19       admission of Exhibits 22 through 26.

      20                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  We are going to enter

      21       Exhibits 22 through 26 into the record.  And we didn't

      22       have anything else we added, did we?  Okay.

      23                 MR. ROSS:  Mr. Chairman, may Doctor Diaz be

      24       excused?

      25                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Are we done with this
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       1       witness?

       2                 MR. YOUNG:  Yes.  He didn't file rebuttal.

       3                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  Thank you.  Thank you

       4       for your testimony, sir.

       5                 (Exhibit Numbers 22 through 26 admitted into

       6       evidence.)

       7                 MR. YOUNG:  Mr. Chairman, I would note that

       8       Ms. Powers is up next, and per the preliminary matters,

       9       it's stipulated that Ms. Powers will present direct and

      10       rebuttal at this time.

      11                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Yes.

      12                 MR. YOUNG:  And also, Mr. Chairman, given the

      13       fact that she is presenting direct and rebuttal, our

      14       recommendation would be her witness summary should be

      15       ten minutes.

      16                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  One more time.

      17                 MR. YOUNG:  Because she is presenting direct

      18       and rebuttal, our recommendation is that she be allowed

      19       ten minutes for opening -- witness summary, excuse me.

      20                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Was that within the

      21       stipulation?

      22                 MR. YOUNG:  The stipulation did not

      23       contemplate the witness summary, but the prehearing

      24       officer's ruling that witness summaries shall be five

      25       minutes every time they take the stand, and the fact
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       1       that she is presenting both, that's ten minutes.

       2                 MR. RUBIN:  Mr. Chairman, I'm Ken Rubin for

       3       FPL.  The summaries combined will take less than five

       4       minutes.

       5                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I was hoping so.  Okay.

       6       Now, according to the stipulation that -- okay,

       7       nevermind.  Please.

       8                 MR. RUBIN:  Mr. Chairman, may I also mention

       9       that Ms. Powers was not in the room this morning when

      10       witnesses were sworn, so she has not yet been sworn.

      11                 (Witness sworn.)

      12                 MR. RUBIN:  Thank you.  May I proceed?

      13                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Yes.

      14                            WINNIE POWERS

      15       was called as a witness on behalf of Florida Power and

      16       Light Company, and having been duly sworn, testified as

      17       follows:

      18                          DIRECT EXAMINATION

      19       BY MR. RUBIN:

      20            Q.   Would you please state your name and business

      21       address?

      22            A.   Yes.  Winnie Powers, 700 Universe Boulevard,

      23       Juno Beach, Florida 33408.

      24            Q.   By whom are you employed and in what capacity?

      25            A.   Florida Power and Light Company, and I am the
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       1       New Nuclear Accounting Project Manager.

       2            Q.   Have you prepared and caused to be filed 24

       3       pages of Prefiled Direct Testimony in this proceeding on

       4       March 1, 2011, entitled Extended Power Uprates 2009?

       5            A.   Yes.

       6            Q.   Have you also prepared and caused to be filed

       7       38 pages of Prefiled Direct Testimony in this proceeding

       8       on March 1, 2011, entitled Turkey Point 6 and 7, 2009

       9       and 2010, and Extended Power Uprates 2010?

      10            A.   Yes.

      11            Q.   Additionally, have you prepared and caused to

      12       be filed 27 pages of Prefiled Direct Testimony in this

      13       proceeding on May 2, 2011, entitled Nuclear Power Plant

      14       Cost-Recovery for the Years Ending December 2011 and

      15       2012?

      16            A.   Yes.

      17            Q.   Did you also cause to be filed three pages of

      18       errata on June 10, 2011?

      19            A.   Yes.

      20            Q.   Do you have any other changes or revisions to

      21       your Prefiled Direct Testimony?

      22            A.   I do.

      23            Q.   Please provide the Commission with those

      24       changes.

      25            A.   In my direct testimony for May 2nd, 2011, on
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       1       Page 23, Line 14, the number $1,531,515 should be

       2       changed to $1,531,532.

       3            Q.   Aside from the change that you just provided,

       4       if I asked you the same questions contained in your

       5       Prefiled Direct and Rebuttal Testimony, would your

       6       answers be the same?

       7            A.   Yes.

       8            Q.   Have you prepared and caused to be filed three

       9       pages of Prefiled Rebuttal Testimony in this proceeding

      10       on July 25, 2011?

      11            A.   Yes.

      12            Q.   Do you have any changes or revisions to that

      13       Prefiled Rebuttal Testimony?

      14            A.   No, I do n0ot.

      15                 MR. RUBIN:  Mr. Chairman, I ask that the

      16       Prefiled Direct Testimony and the Prefiled Rebuttal

      17       Testimony of Ms. Powers be inserted into the record as

      18       though read.

      19                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  We will insert the Prefiled

      20       Direct Testimony and redirect -- I'm sorry, Rebuttal

      21       Testimony into the record as though read of Ms. Powers.

      22                 MR. RUBIN:  Thank you, sir.

      23

      24

      25
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       1       BY MR. RUBIN:

       2            Q.   Are you also sponsoring any exhibits to your

       3       direct testimony?

       4            A.   Yes, I am.

       5            Q.   And do those exhibits consist of WP-1 through

       6       WP-11, and revised WP-5, 10, and 11 included with your

       7       errata, also shown as Exhibits 27 to 37 on staff's

       8       exhibit list?

       9            A.   Yes.

      10            Q.   Are you also co-sponsoring any additional

      11       exhibits to your direct testimony?

      12            A.   Yes, I am.

      13            Q.   And do those exhibits consist of TOJ-1, 12,

      14       13, 21, and 22, and SDS-1 through 6, and SDS-16 through

      15       19, also shown as Exhibits 49, 60, 61, 69, and 70, and

      16       Exhibits 2 through 7 and 17 through 20 on staff's

      17       exhibit list?

      18            A.   Yes.

      19            Q.   Are you sponsoring or co-sponsoring any

      20       exhibits to your rebuttal testimony?

      21            A.   No.

      22            Q.   Have you prepared a summary of both your

      23       direct and rebuttal testimony for the Commission?

      24            A.   Yes, I have.

      25            Q.   Would you please provide that summary to the
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       1       Commission at this time?

       2            A.   Yes.

       3                 Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman and

       4       Commissioners.  FPL requests this Commission approve for

       5       recovery effective January 2012, FPL's total requested

       6       revenue requirement of approximately $196 million

       7       through the capacity cost-recovery clause.  As FPL

       8       Witnesses Scroggs and Jones explain in their testimony,

       9       this equates to a residential customer monthly bill

      10       impact of approximately $2.09 per thousand kWh.  FPL

      11       also requests this Commission approve the 2009 revenue

      12       requirements of approximately $31 million currently

      13       being collected in 2011 through the capacity

      14       cost-recovery clause.

      15                 As the FPL accounting witness, I am

      16       responsible for preparing all of the detailed schedules

      17       submitted to the Commission each year that document and

      18       support our requests for approval under the nuclear

      19       cost-recovery rule.  I present FPL's total revenue

      20       requirement request to be collected beginning

      21       January 2012 and the nuclear filing requirements, or

      22       NFRs that quantify and support those revenue

      23       requirements.  I also present FPL's 2009 revenue

      24       requirements being collected in 2011 and the NFRs that

      25       quantify and support those revenue requirements.
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       1                 Our NFR filings support two nuclear projects

       2       that qualify for cost recovery under the nuclear

       3       cost-recovery rule.  The development of new nuclear

       4       Units 6 and 7 at our Turkey Point plant and the uprate

       5       project at our St. Lucie and Turkey Point nuclear

       6       plants.  In my March and May direct testimony, I provide

       7       an overview of FPL's filing and demonstrate that the

       8       filing complies with the nuclear cost-recovery rule.  I

       9       discuss the comprehensive corporate and overlapping

      10       business unit and accounting and cost controls that we

      11       have in place which are documented, assessed, audited,

      12       and tested on an ongoing basis by both FPL's internal

      13       and external auditors.  Our accounting controls and

      14       costs have also been audited by this Commission's audit

      15       staff.

      16                 All of these controls work together to assure

      17       that only the correct costs, those properly attributable

      18       to the nuclear projects, are submitted to the Commission

      19       through the nuclear cost-recovery clause.  FPL's

      20       comprehensive corporate and overlapping business unit

      21       controls, along with the testimony provided by our

      22       witnesses, provide assurance that our actual costs are

      23       prudent and that our projected costs are reasonable.

      24                 My rebuttal testimony addresses the only issue

      25       raised by the Commission audit staff's financial audit
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       1       of FPL's 2010 actual costs associated with the uprate

       2       and Turkey Point 6 and 7 projects.  After reviewing

       3       FPL's books and records, audit staff recommended for

       4       Turkey Point 6 and 7 that approximately $4,000 be

       5       removed from the nuclear cost-recovery filing.  My

       6       testimony suggests that the most efficient way to

       7       address the recommendation of audit staff is to reflect

       8       the suggested adjustment in our 2011 true-up schedules

       9       to be filed on March 1st, 2012.

      10                 This concludes the oral summary of my direct

      11       and rebuttal testimonies.

      12                 MR. RUBIN:  Mr. Chairman, I tender the witness

      13       for cross-examination.

      14                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Thank you.

      15                 Okay.  Who's going to start this time?  Ms.

      16       Kaufman.

      17                 MS. KAUFMAN:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

      18                          CROSS EXAMINATION

      19       BY MS. KAUFMAN:

      20            Q.   Good afternoon, Ms. Powers.  I just want to

      21       just go back a little bit and just understand the

      22       dollars.  And I just wondered if you could clarify for

      23       me, you are addressing 2009, 2010, 2011, and 2012, is

      24       that right?

      25            A.   Our $196 million adjusts our 2010 actuals, our
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       1       2011 actual/estimated, and our 2012 projections.  We are

       2       also asking this Commission approve our revenue

       3       requirements that we are collecting currently in 2011 of

       4       $31 million.

       5            Q.   So you are addressing the 196 plus the

       6       31 million, correct?

       7            A.   Yes.

       8            Q.   Will you look at your March 1 testimony, Page

       9       1?

      10            A.   Is that the EPU testimony, or the combined

      11       Turkey Point 6 and 7?

      12            Q.   It's the Turkey Point and EPU.  I don't think

      13       it matters, actually, for the purposes of my question.

      14            A.   Okay.  What page was that?  I'm sorry.

      15            Q.   Page 1.

      16            A.   Okay.

      17            Q.   At Page 1, Line 15, you are describing what

      18       your duties are, and you say you ensure that the costs

      19       expended and projected for these projects are accurately

      20       reflected in the nuclear cost-recovery filing

      21       requirements and NFR schedules, correct?

      22            A.   Yes.

      23            Q.   Okay.  Do you have any responsibility to

      24       review the information that is provided to you, or do

      25       you take that information from other sources and
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       1       incorporate it and make sure the schedules are accurate?

       2            A.   In March, we file our actual costs, which we

       3       get from our actual books and records.  And we take

       4       those costs and put them in our NFR schedules and

       5       calculate the revenue requirements that we are

       6       requesting to true-up based on our previously filed

       7       actual/estimated costs.  We then send those NFR

       8       schedules back to the business units and the witnesses

       9       to review them and make sure the costs we've included

      10       are accurate, and then after that we review them again

      11       and file them with this Commission.

      12            Q.   So if I understand what you are saying, it's

      13       not part of your responsibility to go behind the

      14       numbers.  You send that back to the appropriate units,

      15       and they provide that information to you?

      16            A.   For our March filing with our actual costs, we

      17       extract the numbers through our property accounting

      18       recordkeeping system, and those are our actual costs,

      19       and we include those in our nuclear cost-recovery

      20       filings.  Every month we get the costs to do our journal

      21       entries to record the revenue requirements and the

      22       potential true-ups that we will file at the end of the

      23       year.  So we do get costs on a monthly basis and review

      24       them, and we work closely with the business units.

      25            Q.   But for projected costs, for example, those
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       1       obviously are not costs that have yet been incurred.  So

       2       for that information, it is not your job, is it, to go

       3       behind the numbers, as I said before, but you receive

       4       them from other areas of FPL?

       5            A.   Yes.  I receive them from the business units,

       6       and we incorporate them into our schedules.  We ensure

       7       that the witnesses have signed off on them, and then,

       8       once again, once we do our calculations, we send them

       9       back out to the business units to get their final

      10       approval and to make sure that those are the numbers

      11       that they are supporting and that have been approved.

      12            Q.   So you are relying on what the business units

      13       tell you for those projections, and they are the people

      14       that sign off on the information that's given to you?

      15            A.   Yes.

      16                 MS. KAUFMAN:  Thank you.  That's all I have.

      17                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  OPC?

      18                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  No questions.

      19                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  SACE.

      20                 MR. WHITLOCK:  No questions, Mr. Chairman.

      21                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Is that all the intervenors?

      22                 Staff.

      23                 MR. YOUNG:  Staff has a few questions.

      24                          CROSS EXAMINATION

      25
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       1       BY MR. YOUNG:

       2            Q.   Good afternoon, Ms. Powers.

       3            A.   Good afternoon.

       4            Q.   Can you please turn to Page 38 of your March 1

       5       testimony.  Are you there?

       6            A.   Yes.

       7            Q.   Am I correct that you believe no adjustments

       8       should be made in the FPL -- to FPL's rate case type

       9       expense because these type of expense are recorded in a

      10       separate nonNCRC account?

      11            A.   Yes, that's correct.

      12            Q.   Do you recall being deposed by staff on

      13       August 16th, 2010?

      14            A.   Yes, I do.

      15            Q.   Would you agree that the topics in that

      16       deposition was FPL's 2010 errata of prefiled testimony

      17       and schedules?

      18            A.   Yes.

      19            Q.   Do you remember that conversation?

      20            A.   Yes, I do.

      21            Q.   During the course of that deposition you were

      22       asked to provide a late-filed exhibit, correct?

      23            A.   Yes.

      24                 MR. YOUNG:  At this time, Mr. Chairman, what I

      25       would like to do is ask the witness to review part of
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       1       Hearing Exhibit Number 129, the late-filed exhibit from

       2       the August 16th, 2010, deposition and the errata sheet.

       3       And, Mr. Chairman, as I said, we don't need to identify

       4       this as it is already part of the record.

       5       BY MR. YOUNG:

       6            Q.   Ms. Powers, can you briefly describe what

       7       these exhibits show?

       8            A.   Yes.  At my deposition last year, to explain

       9       the errata that we had filed, this exhibit was requested

      10       by you to demonstrate what the costs -- what we

      11       estimated our costs of preparing, filing, and presenting

      12       our testimony, and, I believe, the errata for 2009 and

      13       2010.  And then you had also requested that we show the

      14       total amount and then the percent that was recovered

      15       through the nuclear cost-recovery clause.

      16            Q.   Okay.  Looking at that percent, did you

      17       estimate 55 percent of the $251,060 was recovered

      18       directly through the NCRC process?

      19            A.   On the exhibit, this is the estimated expenses

      20       for 2010 NCRC hearing, and its witness and support cost

      21       is the $251,060.  And, yes, 55 percent of those were

      22       recovered through the nuclear cost-recovery clause.

      23            Q.   Do you recall FPL filing certain revised

      24       testimony and exhibits showing the errata on

      25       August 16th, 2010?
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       1            A.   I don't recall the errata as of that date.  I

       2       had filed errata previously, but I don't recall filing

       3       any after that date.

       4            Q.   But you recall filing an errata, correct?

       5            A.   Yes.  That was the focus of my deposition that

       6       you referred to.

       7            Q.   Is it your understanding that FPL was required

       8       to file the revised testimony and exhibits by the

       9       Commission, correct?

      10            A.   It's my understanding that we are required to

      11       file errata due to errors in order to make our testimony

      12       and exhibits accurate if we find any errors in it, yes.

      13                 MR. YOUNG:  We have no further questions.

      14                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  Redirect.

      15                 MR. RUBIN:  No redirect.

      16                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  We have some things

      17       to enter into the record?

      18                 MR. RUBIN:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.  We would move

      19       Exhibits 27 through 37 and Exhibits 49, 60, 61, 69, and

      20       70 into the record.

      21                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  49?

      22                 MR. RUBIN:  Yes, sir; 49, 60, 61, 69, and 70.

      23                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  We will enter all of those

      24       into the record.

      25                 MR. YOUNG:  Excuse me.  I'm sorry, can you
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       1       repeat the number one more time for me, please?

       2                 MR. RUBIN:  Sure.  It's Exhibits 27 through

       3       37, and then 49, 60, 61, 69, and 70.  Those are the

       4       exhibits that she co-sponsored.

       5                 MR. YOUNG:  Okay.  For 49 I have Terry Jones,

       6       for 60 I have Terry Jones, and the last number you had

       7       is --

       8                 MR. RUBIN:  That is 61, 69, and 70 are all

       9       Terry Jones, but Ms. Powers co-sponsored those exhibits,

      10       which is why I have moved them at this time.

      11                 MR. YOUNG:  Okay.  If there is no objection

      12       from the parties.

      13                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I'm seeing no objections.

      14       Okay.  There is no redirect.  We entered those into the

      15       record.  Are we --

      16                 MR. RUBIN:  I was going to ask, Mr. Chairman,

      17       because Ms. Powers has given both her direct and

      18       rebuttal testimony, may she be excused from the hearing?

      19                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Is there any objection to

      20       excusing Ms. Powers from the intervenors or staff?

      21                 MR. YOUNG:  No objection.

      22                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Ms. Powers, thank you very

      23       much for your testimony.

      24                 THE WITNESS:  Thank you.

      25                 (Exhibits 27 through 37 and Exhibits 49, 60,
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       1       61, 69, and 70 admitted into evidence.)

       2                 (Transcript continues in sequence with

       3       Volume 4.)

       4
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       1

       2       STATE OF FLORIDA    )

       3                           :    CERTIFICATE OF REPORTER

       4       COUNTY OF LEON      )

       5

                         I, JANE FAUROT, RPR, Chief, Hearing Reporter

       6       Services Section, FPSC Division of Commission Clerk, do

               hereby certify that the foregoing proceeding was heard

       7       at the time and place herein stated.

       8                 IT IS FURTHER CERTIFIED that I

               stenographically reported the said proceedings; that the

       9       same has been transcribed under my direct supervision;

               and that this transcript constitutes a true

      10       transcription of my notes of said proceedings.

      11                 I FURTHER CERTIFY that I am not a relative,

               employee, attorney or counsel of any of the parties, nor

      12       am I a relative or employee of any of the parties'
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      14                 DATED THIS 15th day of August, 2011.

      15

      16

                     ___________________________________________

      17                         JANE FAUROT, RPR

                           Official FPSC Hearings Reporter

      18                          (850) 413-6732

      19

      20

      21

      22

      23

      24

      25

                          FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

